
APRIL 21, 2015  PAGE 1 

BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS  
TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 

SIERRA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT 
 
TUESDAY 9:00 a.m. APRIL 21, 2015 
 
PRESENT: 

Marsha Berkbigler, Chair 
Kitty Jung, Vice Chair 

Vaughn Hartung, Commissioner 
Jeanne Herman, Commissioner 

Bob Lucey, Commissioner* 
 

Nancy Parent, County Clerk 
John Slaughter, County Manager 

Dave Watts, Legal Counsel 
Charles Moore, Fire Chief 

 
 The Board convened at 9:01 a.m. in regular session in the Commission 
Chambers of the Washoe County Administration Complex, 1001 East Ninth Street, Reno, 
Nevada, and conducted the following business: 
 
15-0046F AGENDA ITEM 3 
 
Agenda Subject: “Public Comment - Comment heard under this item will be limited 
to three minutes per person and may pertain to matters both on and off the Board 
of Fire Commissioners agenda. The District will also hear public comment during 
individual action items, with comment limited to three minutes per person.  
Comments are to be made to the Board of Fire Commissioners as a whole.” 
 
 Chief Richard Boykin, Cold Springs Volunteer Fire Department, 
explained the history, structure, and mission of the County’s Volunteer Fire Departments. 
He said the Volunteer Fire Departments contracted with the District and any problems 
were dealt with through cooperation, negotiation and management skills. He said the 
volunteers had not received copies of the Volunteer Handbook nor were they asked to 
provide input and, from what he heard, the proposed overhaul of the volunteer system 
threatened to destroy morale. He stated that would most likely result in the decline of the 
depth of service provided to the citizens of Washoe County by the volunteers. He said it 
would be a shame to lose their hundreds of years of experience and knowledge. He 
encouraged the Commissioners to visit their volunteer departments and to make their own 
decisions as to their value. 
 
  



PAGE 2  APRIL 21, 2015 

CONSENT ITEMS – 4A THROUGH 4D 
 
15-0047F AGENDA ITEM 4A 
 
Agenda Subject: “Approval of minutes from Board of Fire Commissioners meeting 
January 27, 2015 and February 10, 2015.” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Jung, 
which motion duly carried with Commissioner Lucey absent, it was ordered that Agenda 
Item 4A be approved. 
 
15-0048F AGENDA ITEM 4B 
 
Agenda Subject: “Approval of an Interlocal Agreement between Truckee Meadows 
Fire Protection District and Washoe County, on behalf of the Washoe County 
Sheriff’s Office, for the testing and training connected to Self-Contained Breathing 
Apparatus Equipment commencing April 21, 2015.” 
 
 There was no action taken or public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Jung, 
which motion duly carried with Commissioner Lucey absent, it was ordered that Agenda 
Item 4B be approved. The Interlocal Agreement for same is attached hereto and made a 
part of the minutes thereof. 
 
15-0049F AGENDA ITEM 4C 
 
Agenda Subject: “Approval of a Cooperative Fire Protection Agreement and 
corresponding Annual Operating Plan for Cooperative Fire Protection Agreement 
between Bureau of Land Management, Carson City District Office, Winnemucca 
District Office and Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District.” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Jung, 
which motion duly carried with Commissioner Lucey absent, it was ordered that Agenda 
Item 4C be approved. The Cooperative Fire Protection Agreement for same is attached 
hereto and made a part of the minutes thereof. 
 
15-0050F AGENDA ITEM 4D 
 
Agenda Subject: “Approval of the Interlocal Agreement – RAVEN Fire Training, 
Monitoring and Suppression Personnel and Equipment between the County of 
Washoe on behalf of the Washoe County Sheriff’s Office, Truckee Meadows Fire 



APRIL 21, 2015  PAGE 3 

Protection District and North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District [$65,000 and 
$10,000 respectively] for the provision, when requested of a helicopter or other 
aircraft and personnel and approve reimbursement for services rendered 
throughout the year by the Washoe County Sherriff’s Office to be paid in 
accordance with the Interlocal Agreement to the Washoe County Sheriff’s Office 
Regional Aviation Unit (RAVEN), and if approved, authorize the Finance Division 
to make the necessary budget adjustments. 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Jung, 
which motion duly carried with Commissioner Lucey absent, it was ordered that Agenda 
Item 4D be approved and authorized. The Interlocal Agreement for same is attached 
hereto and made a part of the minutes thereof. 
 
15-0051F AGENDA ITEM 5 
 
Agenda Subject: “Fire Chief Report:  A)  Report and discussion related to fire 
district operations and B)  Career and Volunteer Statistics’ and Report for March 
2015.” 
  
 Fire Chief Charles Moore advised the City of Reno and the District 
completed the Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) upgrade of the Tiburon system. He 
stated there was a significant enhancement to the software upgrade that allowed the 
dispatchers to see the position of every law enforcement vehicle and fire truck, which by 
the end of June should include the City of Sparks. He stated the CAD software would 
automatically select the closest unit, which he felt was consistent with the intent of SB 
185. He stated in real time, the dispatcher could see if a fire vehicle was on a call, 
returning from a call, or if it was in quarters. He said that removed any of the 
technological problems with automatic aid moving forward in the region. He stated he 
believed the coordinated dispatch center was the first step in getting regional fire going.  
 
 Commissioner Hartung asked if seeing the Reno-Tahoe International 
Airport Authority Fire Department vehicles would be included. Chief Moore said only if 
they had a mobile-data terminal. He advised the airport’s vehicles were generally 
restricted to the airport’s property per Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) 
regulations. 
 
 Commissioner Jung asked if dispatch could see the location of the 
Regional Emergency Medical Services Authority’s (REMSAs) ambulances. Chief Moore 
replied they could not be seen with the Tiburon software upgrade due to REMSA being 
on a different system. He stated when the CAD-to-CAD interface was connected, it 
would be likely the ambulance locations would be seen. Commissioner Jung encouraged 
Chief Moore to speak with whoever was in charge of the Airport Authority’s Fire 
Department because all of the separate fire departments needed to be included to achieve 
a truly regional fire department. She stated she understood the FAA regulations, but she 



PAGE 4  APRIL 21, 2015 

was aware there were other communities that fully regionalized all of their fire 
departments. Chief Moore said he would follow up with Chief Nelson. 
 
*9:10 a.m. Commissioner Lucey arrived.  
 
 Chair Berkbigler asked for a report at the next meeting on what the 
timeframe for REMSA would be because the Commissioners were getting a lot of 
questions about that issue. Chief Moore said the company that produced REMSA’s 
dispatching software purchased Tiburon. He felt perhaps in a year or two there would be 
some kind of connectivity between Tiburon and the software REMSA used. He said in 
the shorter term, once Tiburon’s upgrade was done with the City of Sparks, there would 
be a link between REMSA, the County’s dispatch, and the City of Reno’s dispatch. He 
stated when a call came up and REMSA saw it, the District’s dispatchers would see it 
also, and vice versa.  
 
 Commissioner Hartung asked if eventually the police and sheriff units 
would be hooked up. He said fire might be able to be the first responder, but if it was a 
situation that had to be cleared first by the Sheriff’s Office or one of the police 
departments, it would be important to know where those resources were at any given 
time. Chief Moore replied a dispatcher would also be able to see law enforcement. He 
said many communities equipped law enforcement with an automatic heart defibrillator 
because they often arrived ahead of fire. He said a fully integrated dispatch operation 
would solve not knowing where resources were, especially during instances when a fire 
was three blocks away from a fire truck sitting in its station. Commissioner Hartung said 
he hoped it would involve saying there was an emergency three blocks away regardless 
of what the emergency entailed. Chief Moore stated he believed SB 185 set a minimum 
level of cooperation between the fire agencies and contained nothing that would restrict 
the jurisdictions from taking it one step further so there would be automatic aid across the 
board for any sort of emergency that needed an immediate response from whatever 
agency. Chair Berkbigler believed the intent of SB 185 was to get the communities 
talking to each other on how to best serve its citizens, and hopefully this would be step 
one.  
 
 Chief Moore said the moisture level in the tall timbers was very dangerous 
and the District’s fear was about a fire getting into the tall timbers and crowning. He 
stated one projection indicated the potential was for 1,000 hours of fuel to be incinerated 
in 4 hours due to the very dry conditions. He said he was not as concerned about the 
Sagebrush and the grass fires, because there were always some of those types of fires 
during the summer. He stated a huge amount of caution needed to be exercised with 
respect to the 1,000-hour fuels. He said last year’s Hunter Creek fire would be a different 
fire if it happened this year, because it would be a lot more severe. He stated the Truckee 
River watershed basin was 15 percent of normal and the water in Lake Tahoe was three 
feet below its natural rim and was expected to drop to about six feet. He said the District 
would do its part to conserve water by restricting any training that would require flowing 
water; it would test its fire hydrants, but not flush them; and would look at all of the fire 
stations’ irrigation systems.  



APRIL 21, 2015  PAGE 5 

 
 Commissioner Lucey said he lived near Reno’s Fire Station 12, and he 
saw them washing off the back aprons with the brush tender’s water. He asked if there 
were any water restrictions in place due to the drought. Chief Moore said he had been 
talking about conserving water at the staff level. He stated the fire trucks would not be 
washed as often unless the vehicle had been out on a brush fire and was exceptionally 
dirty. He stated in that case it would be washed due to dirt being abrasive. He said 
conserving water in the facilities was also being looked at.  
 
 Chief Moore said minor issues were corrected with the Type 3 Engines 
after they were delivered, and they should be in service by the end of May; and the last 
Type 1 Engine would be delivered in about three months. He stated he was proud of what 
was done to upgrade the District’s emergency vehicles during the last few years.  
 
 Chief Moore said there was a meeting of the Regional Fire Chiefs at Lake 
Tahoe, and a busy fire season was expected and there was a discussion on limiting mutual 
aid requests. He stated if the area received some monsoonal moisture, the stance of 
limiting mutual aid to the District’s regional partners could be relaxed somewhat. He said 
when a call went out, the response would occur within 30 minutes in an attempt to keep 
the fire small.  
 
 Chair Berkbigler said Incline Village would be conducting a program on 
how the citizens in a specific senior community would egress in the event of a fire, and 
she asked if the District would be participating. Chief Moore said he would be talking 
with the new homeowners in Montrose at the end of April, and he asked to get on an 
agenda for the Galena Forest Homeowners Association because he was very worried 
about that area’s fuels. He said regarding community wide evacuations, people should 
sign up for Code Red, which was the best way to get the word out to an area’s citizens 
that it was time to leave. Chair Berkbigler asked if the citizens would be given an 
evacuation plan. Chief Moore said Galena had only one way out. He stated an evacuation 
needed to be coordinated so it did not conflict with the incoming fire trucks. He said it 
was necessary to understand where the fire was burning and where it was heading to 
determine who needed to be evacuated. He said the National Weather Service was a 
partner in understanding that issue. He stated the strategy was to get enough resources 
surrounding the fire and then work inward to suppress it. He said once the fire crews had 
control of the perimeter of a wildfire, they could breathe easier. He stated wind was the 
one thing they could not control and no amount of mutual aid would allow surrounding a 
wind-driven fire quickly enough to contain it. He said during a wind event, fire personnel 
had to get downstream of where the fire would be in 30 to 45 minutes and start setting up 
there. He stated it had been proven time and time again that defensible space would 
increase a home’s survivability.  
 
 Chief Moore said a Wildfire Awareness seminar would be hosted by the 
Cooperative Extension of the University of Nevada, Reno on May 2nd for the West 
Washoe Valley residents, which was held last year for the residents of Arrowcreek. Amy 
Ray, Fire Marshal, discussed other upcoming events.   



PAGE 6  APRIL 21, 2015 

 
 Chief Moore said community preparedness would pay dividends this 
summer. He stated the National Weather Service warned of wind events during May and 
June, but they would not be as severe as those typically seen in July.  
 
 Chief Moore said the District’s staff was involved in three cardiac arrests 
that had successful outcomes, and he was very proud of them. He believed that validated 
the District’s strategy of having the advanced life support (ALS) program in place when 
it was stood up.  
 
 There was no public comment or action taken on this item. 
  
15-0052F AGENDA ITEM 6 
 
Agenda Subject: “Approval of a two year Interlocal Contract between Truckee 
Meadows Fire Protection District and the State of Nevada acting by and through the 
Nevada Division of Forestry Department of Conservation and Natural Resources in 
the amount of $180,000 per fiscal year, not to exceed $360,000 for the purpose of 
resources, equipment and financial assistance in the mitigation of emergency fire 
incidents.” 
 
 Fire Chief Charles Moore said this Interlocal Contract worked much like 
an insurance program. He stated if there was a major wildfire and the costs kept climbing, 
the Nevada Division of Forestry (NDF) would pay any extraordinary costs. He urged the 
Commission to ratify the Interlocal Contract. 
 
 Commissioner Hartung asked if it was the same amount as last year. Chief 
Moore said the Interlocal Contract included the Sierra Fire Protection District and the 
Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District, and he believed it was for the same amount as 
last year. Commissioner Hartung stated it was not an unreasonable figure. Chief Moore 
said $180,000 could be spent in about 15 minutes.  
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Lucey, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 6 be approved. The Interlocal 
Contract for same is attached hereto and made a part of the minutes thereof. 
 
15-0053F AGENDA ITEM 7 
 
Agenda Subject: “Discussion and possible approval of the annual performance 
evaluation for Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District Fire Chief including (but 
not limited to) discussion regarding results, goals, and objectives.” 
 
 Fire Chief Charles Moore said last year he provided a list of what was 
accomplished and what the District’s needs were for the following year. Commissioner 



APRIL 21, 2015  PAGE 7 

Hartung requested information on whether the goals set last year were met and whether 
the District stayed inside of its budgetary constraints. Chief Moore said he could do it 
now or next month, but he needed to know what items the Board wanted him to work on 
for the next year. Chair Berkbigler suggested the Chief provide a brief synopsis of the 
goals that were met, after which the Commissioners could provide him with what they 
would like him to do during the next year.  
 
 Chief Moore said the memo attached to the staff report outlined a number 
of his accomplishments. He believed what the Board felt was important for next year was 
to complete the merger of the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District (TMFPD) and 
the Sierra Fire Protection District (SFPD). He said a lot of steps had been taken with 
respect to the Legislature because a law was needed to allow the Board to dissolve the 
SFPD, would increase the Emergency Fire Fund from $1million to $1.5 million, and 
would ensure any SFPD tax abatements were left intact as the TMFPD came in over the 
SFPD. He said once the Board approved the dissolution, staff would have to work with 
the Assessor’s and the Treasurer’s Offices to put everything in place by Fiscal Year 
2016-17 with respect to the tax billings. He advised this should be the last year there 
would be separate budgets for the TMFPD and the SPFD. 
 
 Chief Moore said there was a need to consolidate the volunteer 
departments due to the difficulty in managing nine departments. He stated the training 
program also needed to be reenergized, which was a very high priority. He said with 
respect, the way the volunteers did business for the last 40 years he did not see as a good 
model to use going forward. He understood change was difficult, but it was necessary for 
managing risk, organizational efficiency, and many of the things he outlined during 
previous presentations. He said he would be presenting the full plan to the Board next 
month, and he believed building up the volunteers would take about two years.  
 
 Chief Moore said work on automatic aid was well under way and, once SB 
185 was passed, the Fire Chiefs would work out a plan and figure out how CAD would 
make that work. 
 
 Chief Moore said there were some glaring facility needs. He advised the 
logistics warehouse needed a new roof, because the existing roof contained asbestos, and 
it was not seismically up to date. He stated an analysis indicated it did not make sense to 
spend money on the facility and a new location needed to be found for the logistics 
warehouse. He said staff was doing an analysis of the options, which he should be able to 
bring to the Board in a couple of months. He stated relocating Station 14 was a high 
priority and the Hidden Valley Station needed an extension to its truck bay because only 
one of the fleet’s engines fit. He said Station 39 needed an additional bathroom due to the 
increasing gender diversity of the workforce, along with some exterior upgrades.  
 
 Chief Moore stated because the District’s operations to respond to I-80 
calls would be co-located with Storey County, he spoke to some of the Commissioners 
about the Reno Industrial Park’s developer wanting to fund the rolling stock needed now 
instead of building that station in the future. He said doing that would add the rolling 



PAGE 8  APRIL 21, 2015 

stock to the District’s fleet at no additional cost to the taxpayers. Commissioner Hartung 
asked if the rolling stock would cost the same as the station. Chief Moore said it would be 
close. Commissioner Hartung said he understood the need for rolling stock, but his 
concern was about the life expectancy of the rolling stock versus a station. Chief Moore 
said the life expectancy of a ladder truck and a heavy rescue was about 15 plus years, 
because they were not used on a daily basis, and a station could last 30 to 50 years 
depending on the materials used to build it. Commissioner Hartung said the rolling stock 
was a relatively short-term investment compared to a piece of property, which would be 
an asset owned by the District that would continue to escalate in value. Chief Moore said 
he saw a need for that station in 10 to 15 years, and he would propose leaving the option 
open of building the station if needed. He advised the rolling stock was needed now and 
would be an investment of $2 million or more. Commissioner Hartung requested an 
analysis of the cost to purchase the equipment with the inflationary rate versus a hard 
location. He also wanted to know if there would be any flexibility regarding locating the 
station, because he thought that station could be built anywhere up and down the I-80 
corridor. Chief Moore explained there was a specific site earmarked for the station at the 
entrance to the Reno Industrial Park.  
 
 Chief Moore reviewed items 6 through 9 and item 11 listed in his memo to 
the Board attached to the staff report. He said Item 10 was about amending the TMFPD 
and Washoe County agreement, because it was felt there were a number of ways the 
District could be more efficient with respect to expenditures, especially fleet 
maintenance, by having the ability to use outside contractors. He stated staff would like 
to bring forward a purchasing policy unique to the District. Commissioner Jung said she 
would like to see an evaluation of the top three things the District was paying back to the 
General Fund under the County wide cost allocation plan (COWCAP) to see if the 
District would be better off if it had its own attorney or mechanic.  
 
 Commissioner Jung requested a 360-evaluation be done for the Chief 
based on a list of 15 people the Chief and Chair agreed would provide good feedback on 
the Chief’s performance. Chief Moore said he would be happy to do that as long as 
people would attach their name to their comments. Commissioner Jung advised the 
evaluations were always anonymous. She said she wanted feedback on the Chief’s 
strengths and difficulties, because she certainly was not a fire expert. She stated she 
would not set him up for failure, and she, the Chief, and the Chair could sit down to 
figure out who those people would be. Chair Berkbigler said a 360-evaluation was a 
pretty standard protocol for evaluating department heads. She felt it would be beneficial 
to the Chief, because she had gone through them herself and found them to be very 
beneficial.  
 
 In response to the call for public comment, Cliff Low said if the District 
did a State of the District message, it would indicate the District was strong and getting 
stronger. He stated for anyone to say the District provided inferior service would be 
someone who did not have all of the information, especially if they stated it was inferior 
due to the flexible staffing the District used to match its resources to the types of calls it 
dealt with. He said Chief Moore was a good man and was doing a fine job in less than 



APRIL 21, 2015  PAGE 9 

ideal circumstances. He felt if the Chief’s performance was satisfactory, the Board should 
look at his compensation to make sure it was in line with what it should be. 
 
 Thomas Daley said the Chief left off one accomplishment, which was fuel 
reduction. He thanked the Chief and his staff for getting the Estates at Mt. Rose five fuel 
reduction grants over the last eight years. He said in some cases the District administered 
the grants and in some cases they also did the work. He stated they were as safe as any 
community in Washoe County and was the only community with a community-wide 
protection plan for reducing wildfires. He said there was another grant pending, which 
they hoped to have by the fall. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Jung, seconded by Commissioner Lucey, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Chief Moore’s evaluation be postponed to 
allow extra time for a 360-degree survey to be conducted by a mutually-agreed upon 
group of people, to provide information as discussed regarding the COWCAP 
expenditures to see if there might be a more advantageous way for the District to have 
those duties performed, and about the Chief’s proposed priorities and expectations. She 
said regarding the Chief’s salary, no staff time should be used to do the pay evaluation. 
She stated budget oversight was number one in terms of how people were paid 
throughout the region, as well as how many employees they had. 
 
15-0054F AGENDA ITEM 8 
 
Agenda Subject: “Discussion and possible action to create a position in concept 
(based upon the draft job specification attached) titled Fire Officer in Charge of 
Strategic and Volunteer Services and if approved, authorize staff to perform a risk 
analysis, ADA assessment and submit to NV PERS for evaluation.” 
 
 Chief Moore discussed Captain Bill Winchester’s situation. He said it was 
believed Captain Winchester’s knowledge and experience could be leveraged in some 
way other than by his being a Fire Captain. He stated the Board was being asked to 
consider the concept of the Fire Officer in Charge of Strategic and Volunteer Services 
position. He said if the position was approved, the next step would be to do a risk 
analysis based on what the American’s with Disabilities Act (ADA) modifications would 
be needed in the workplace. He stated it was important to Captain Winchester that he be 
able to stay within the Fire/Police Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS). He said 
Captain Winchester would manage the volunteer program along with performing the 
other duties shown in the draft Class Specification attached to the staff report. Chair 
Berkbigler believed this was the right step to take, because she felt strongly the 
gentleman still had a lot to offer the County. She thanked Chief Moore for bringing this 
forward and Commissioner Jung for working with Captain Winchester on this. 
 
 Commissioner Lucey said he wanted to run this through the Police/Fire 
PERS to make sure there would be no issues going forward. He said Captain Winchester 
was and continued to be an amazing asset for the District, and we need to make sure we 
did whatever we could to help him continue his career with the District. Chief Moore said 



PAGE 10  APRIL 21, 2015 

Nevada PERS had its own evaluation process and would make that decision, which 
would be the next step if this recommendation was approved. 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Jung, seconded by Commissioner Lucey, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 8 be approved and 
authorized. She requested staff to be mindful of the PERS calendar that we were working 
under and she wanted this expedited. 
 
15-0055F AGENDA ITEM 9 
 
Agenda Subject: “Discussion and action on the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection 
District Tentative Budget for Fiscal Year 2015-16 and direct staff to return at the 
Final Budget Hearing set for May 18, 2015.” 
 
 This item was heard solely by the Board of Fire Commissioners for the 
Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District (TMFPD).  
 
 Vicki Van Buren, Chief Fiscal Officer, said the final budget for Fiscal 
Year 2015-16 would be brought before the Board on May 18, 2015. She conducted the 
first part of a PowerPoint presentation highlighting the District’s financial overview, 
which included revenues and expenditures. While reviewing the District’s revenues, Ms. 
Van Buren noted the $24,920,655 included a payment from the Sierra Fire Protection 
District (SFPD) of approximately $6.6 million to pay for operations per the Interlocal 
Agreement. She said the District’s property tax rate was $.54 per $100 of assessed 
property value, which would amount to approximately $10.9 million for Fiscal Year 
2016. She stated that amount was around $700,000 or about 7 percent less than what was 
collected in Fiscal Year 2009-10. She noted even with the tax rate increase, property 
owners were paying 7 percent less due to the property’s lower assessed values. She said 
the expenditures included the full cost of the engine companies with paramedics, keeping 
all of the stations open, a new Fire Prevention Specialist position, and several programs. 
She stated there was a one-time $4 million transfer to the Capital Projects Fund to fund 
the District’s Capital Improvement Program for 2016, which came from a onetime budget 
savings and the normal ongoing funding done each year. She explained the purpose of the 
General Fund Balance, which was at 25 percent of the expenditures or approximately 
$5.9 million. She said the General Fund was sustainable in the short and long term, and 
she discussed the Districts other funds. She stated the District’s tentative budget for 
Fiscal Year 2015-16 was financially sustainable in the short and long term.  
 
 Chief Moore said regarding the service levels slide, all of the District’s 
stations were staffed fulltime, were paramedic capable, and no station had been browned 
out in the last three years. He said the Blue Ribbon Task Force suggested looking at the 
peak activity, and the District considered its peak activity resources to be its volunteers. 
He stated the National Weather Service gave the District 24-hours’ notice to mobilize the 
volunteers based on projected thunderstorm activity, which provided the District with 



APRIL 21, 2015  PAGE 11 

added depth in its resources. He advised the emergency-vehicle fleet was upgraded and 
was now substantially more reliable. He said the Level 3 Insurance Services Office (ISO) 
rating was a substantial improvement from the Level 5 rating the District had when it was 
under the Interlocal Agreement with the City of Reno. He advised the lower the number, 
which ranged from 1-10, the better the rating. He believed it was a mistake to assume the 
city level of fire service should be applicable to the County with its rural and suburban 
densities, which was different than downtown Reno where there was a concentration of 
risk and should have a concentration of resources. He said the City of Reno was rated as a 
Level 2 and the County was a Level 3, which accounted for a de minimis amount in an 
insurance premium; but going from a Level 5 to a Level 3 saved the Board’s constituents 
quite a bit of money. He said during the last ISO audit, the District got credit for hauled 
water, which meant the water tenders were equivalent to a fire hydrant. He said not every 
insurance company used the ISO ratings, but this was a significant improvement and 
lowered the amount of money the Board’s constituents paid for fire insurance. 
 
 Fire Marshal Amy Ray reviewed the slide highlighting the District’s 
prevention and community outreach programs. She said a fee structure would be brought 
forward to cover the plan review services done by the District’s Prevention Division.  
 
 Chief Moore reviewed the personnel and the 2014 incidents slides. He said 
structure fires requiring two in and two out totaled only 17 calls. He stated staffing the 
station with four firefighters would require spending 33 percent more to cover 17 calls, 
which he felt was not a good business strategy. He said if there was a fire that called for 
two in and two out, the operation could be started with three firefighters, and he 
discussed an incident in Hidden Valley. He stated he was proud of the District’s value to 
fire loss rate.  
 
 Commissioner Hartung noted the total percentage on the 2014 Incidents 
slide only came to about 75 percent, and he asked what was excluded. Chief Moore said 
false alarms, auto accidents with no injuries, and natural gas leaks were excluded. He said 
the 7,933 total responses counted each response as one incident no matter how many 
vehicles were involved.  
 
 Chief Moore reviewed the 2014 Capital Program Facilities slide, and 
noted two of the District’s water tenders were being replaced. A copy of the presentation 
was placed on file with the Clerk. 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner 
Herman, which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 9 be approved.  
 



PAGE 12  APRIL 21, 2015 

15-0056F AGENDA ITEM 10 
 
Agenda Subject: “Discussion and action on the Sierra Fire Protection District 
Tentative Budget for Fiscal Year 2015-16 and direct staff to return at the Final 
Budget Hearing set for May 18, 2015.” 
 
 This item was heard solely by the Board of Fire Commissioners for the 
Sierra Fire Protection District (SPFD).  
 
 Vicki Van Buren, Chief Fiscal Officer, said the final budget for Fiscal 
Year 2015-16 would be brought to the Board on May 18, 2015. She said the SFPD’s 
finances had stabilized and the District was financially sound. She stated the District’s tax 
rate was $.54 per $100 of assessed value. She advised the total General Fund revenues 
were budgeted at approximately $7 million and the expenditures were budgeted at $7.5 
million, which left an estimated fund balance of about $1.2 million or 17 percent of the 
expenditures. She said the expenditures included a onetime capital expenditure of 
$500,000 for the building improvements at Station 39 and the payment to the Truckee 
Meadows Fire Protection District of approximately $6.7 million. She said the SFPD paid 
for its own annual audits, property and liability insurance, independent contractors, 
Wildland Fire Emergency Fund, and capital expenditures.     
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Jung, seconded by Commissioner Hartung, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 10 be approved. 
 
15-0057F AGENDA ITEM 11 
 
Agenda Subject: “Possible Closed Session for the purpose of discussing labor issues 
with Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District per NRS 288.220. 
 
 There was no closed session. 
 
15-0058F AGENDA ITEM 12 
 
Agenda Subject: “Commissioners’/Fire Chief’s announcements, requests for 
information, topics for future agendas, and statements relating to items not on the 
Agenda.  (No discussion among Commissioners will take place on this item).” 
 
 Chief Moore said there would be the possible consideration of a ballot 
question regarding regional or consolidated fire on next month’s agenda. 
 
15-0059F AGENDA ITEM 13 
 
Agenda Subject: “Public Comment. Comment heard under this item will be limited 
to three minutes per person and may pertain to matters both on and off the Board 



APRIL 21, 2015  PAGE 13 

of Fire Commissioners agenda. The District will also hear public comment during 
individual action items, with comment limited to three minutes per person.  
Comments are to be made to the Board of Fire Commissioners as a whole.” 
 
 John Howitt said he favored reasonable compensation for government 
employees, but a line needed to be drawn. He stated he sent Commissioner Lucey several 
e-mails and left messages requesting a meeting about the Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority, 
which suffered some of the worst gorging by public officials. He said the purpose of the 
meeting was to share important information about the Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority to 
help the Board select the new Trustee. He stated good government did not just happen 
and there must be trust between elected officials and their constituents, and that trust was 
achieved through talking and sharing ideas.  
 
 Cathy Brandhorst spoke about issues of concern to herself.  
 
 Sam Dehne said he was proud of the District’s personnel and he supported 
the volunteers and the budget.   
 

* * * * * * * * * * * 
 
10:39 p.m. There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting 
was adjourned without objection.  
 
 
 
 
  ___________________________ 
  MARSHA BERKBIGLER, Chair 
  Truckee Meadows Fire 
  Protection District and Sierra  
  Fire Protection District 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________ 
NANCY PARENT, Washoe County Clerk 
and Ex-Officio Clerk, Truckee Meadows 
Fire Protection District and Sierra Fire 
Protection District 
 
Minutes Prepared By: 
Jan Frazzetta, Deputy County Clerk  
 












































































































































	BOARD OF FIRE COMMISSIONERS
	TRUCKEE MEADOWS FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
	15-0046F AGENDA ITEM 3
	15-0047F AGENDA ITEM 4A
	15-0048F AGENDA ITEM 4B
	15-0049F AGENDA ITEM 4C
	15-0050F AGENDA ITEM 4D
	15-0051F AGENDA ITEM 5
	15-0052F AGENDA ITEM 6
	15-0053F AGENDA ITEM 7
	15-0054F AGENDA ITEM 8
	15-0055F AGENDA ITEM 9
	15-0056F AGENDA ITEM 10
	15-0057F AGENDA ITEM 11
	Agenda Subject: “Possible Closed Session for the purpose of discussing labor issues with Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District per NRS 288.220.
	15-0058F AGENDA ITEM 12
	15-0059F AGENDA ITEM 13
	Jan Frazzetta, Deputy County Clerk



